ESKOM

Environmental Impact Assessment for the two proposed coal-fired power stations in the Waterberg area, Limpopo

DEAT Ref No. 12/12/20/1255

DRAFT minutes of the Landowner/Agricultural Focus Group Meeting

Saturday, 4 October 2008 at 10:00, Old NTK Hall, Steenbokpan

1. INTRODUCTION

The facilitator, Ms Anelle Odendaal, Zitholele Consulting welcomed all participants. The meeting was attended by landowners and representatives of the agricultural sector relevant to this project. The contact details of those who completed the attendance list are attached (see Appendix 1). It should be noted that about 53 participants (including Eskom and the project team) attended the meeting, however not all participants completed the attendance list.

2. OBJECTIVES OF THE MEETING

The objectives of this focus group meeting were to:

- Provide stakeholders with an overview of the proposed project;
- For stakeholders to raise issues of concern and suggestions for enhanced benefits;
- For stakeholders to comment on the technical and public participation processes of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA); and
- For members of the EIA team to gather first-hand insight into stakeholders' issues of concern and suggestions for enhanced benefits.

3. OVERVIEW OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT

Mr Leonard van der Walt, Eskom Holdings (Pty) Ltd. gave a comprehensive overview, not only of the proposed power stations, but of Eskom's national power grid and the significant role that the proposed power stations will play in providing energy. The complete presentation is included in Appendix 2.

4. APPROACH TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT – TECHNICAL COMPONENT

Mr Ashwin West, Ninham Shand Consulting Services, the project manager of this EIA, gave an abbreviated version of his presentation due to the lively discussions that took place. The complete presentation is however included as Appendix 2.

5. APPROACH TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT – PUBLIC PARTICIPATION COMPONENT

Ms Anelle Odendaal, Zitholele Consulting did not present the public participation components due to the lively discussions that took place. The slide show that would have been presented is attached as Appendix 2.

6. DISCUSSION

Comments and questions raised during the meeting have been captured in the following table.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
1.	Why is the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) not attending this meeting since they are the decision-making authority	Mr Willie Brits	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	A meeting was specifically held with the authorities on 3 October 2008, which was attended by the case officer of the DEAT, Mr Percy Ngidi. The purpose of today's meeting is focused on the comments and needs of the landowner/agricultural sector. A public meeting, to which all interested and affected parties will be invited, is planned for November 2008
2.	What does super-critical mean? This was asked in terms of the presentation by Mr	Unknown participant	Comments during the landowner and agricultural	Super-critical refers to higher steam temperatures and pressures as opposed to

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
	Leonard van der Walt on the overview of the proposed project.		sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Sub-critical. This implies higher efficiencies (less coal used to generate the same amount of electricity).
3.	Will the proposed power stations use the same technology as Medupi?	Unknown participant	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Yes, the same technology will be applied.
4.	Why do you need so many hectares for a power station?	Unknown participant	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	The ash dump of a power station keeps on growing and has to allow for 50 years worth of ash – the proposed life of a power station.
5.	What are you going to do with the third site if the current EIA scope comprises two power stations?	Mr Archie Leitch	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom are going to buy options on the farms on all three candidate sites and could use the third site for a third power station if demand requires it.
6.	What is Eskom's planning for the next 50 years?	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Planning has to be very comprehensive and Eskom cannot say, at this stage, how many more power stations will be required in the area. The Lephalale coal is however very affordable since open cast mines can be used, which makes the region attractive for additional coal-fired power stations.
7.	When was the planning road map (funnel of planning presented by Mr Leonard van der Walt) developed?	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom plans ahead for 25 years. The planning road map was compiled six months ago; however the map is adjusted all the time and changes regularly, responding to changes in demand and supply.
8.	When did Eskom decide to investigate the option of building two power stations?	Mr Hardus Steenkamp	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom knew more than a year ago that more power stations were needed, but did not know exactly where to construct these. Last year Eskom advertised a request for offers of coal to supply new coal fired power stations. From

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
				these responses Eskom then decided that it would be feasible to construct additional power stations in the Waterberg area, as a suite of coal mines offered coal suitable for the power station in the area.
9.	We asked exactly the same questions last year concerning Eskom's planning with regard to more power stations for this region. We were told no more power stations were planned for the area. We are questioning Eskom's integrity since it appears that either Eskom is not competent to do their planning or information was deliberately withheld a year ago.	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
10.	We do not want to attend a meeting in another year's time and discuss the next two power stations – we want Eskom to share their long-term planning with us.	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
11.	All power stations need transmission lines – why are the proposed transmission lines not included in this EIA – why can Eskom not make that information available to us at this stage?	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	This information is not yet available as the routes for the transmission lines (transmission integration) are still being investigated. The proposed routes of the transmission lines for Coal 3 and 4 could be available early next year.
12.	Last year an EIA was conducted on behalf of Eskom for the transmission lines from Medupi power station and my farm specifically fell outside the planned route – but the route was changed later during the process and I am now an affected party.	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
13.	Eskom must plan power stations and its associated transmission lines in the same process and liaise with us on all this information, and not prior to the availability of such information.	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
14.	Most of the farmers of this area are fifty years and older, we cannot put our lives on hold. We cannot wait for ten years while Eskom decides whether or not to buy our farms. We need clarity now on whether we should sell or continue farming. Eskom's planning is very bad.	Prof Jan Meiring, Mr Steenkamp and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
15.	Eskom does not pay enough.	Prof Jan Meiring, Mr Steenkamp and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
16.	The minutes of previous meetings between Eskom and some of the participants at the meeting were quoted that no further power stations were planned for the area. Eskom therefore lied at these meetings and can not be trusted. Eskom uses euphemisms such as "affected parties", but withholds facts – all cards are not on the table. Today we would like to know how many more cards Eskom has behind their backs. I have seven or eight examples of previous minutes where Eskom said no future power stations are planned – I cannot believe that Eskom did not know about Coal 3 and Coal 4 a year ago. Eskom does not have any integrity and the level of mistrust is unbelievable.	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
17.	Landowners are interested in Eskom's full planning which includes the integration of planning for power stations and transmission lines. When can Eskom make this information available for Coal 3 and Coal 4?	Facilitator	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
18.	Some stakeholders have spent a lot of money	Mr Archie Leitch and	Comments during the	Noted.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
	on legal costs in previous processes with Eskom. However, it seems that even the DEAT is in the bag with Eskom since recommendations previously made by external consultants were not followed.	others	landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	
19.	Could you please include financial and social studies in the EIA – do not only look at the animals, but also study the impact on people as well. Some of the people have been living here for 70 years and longer and some farms have been in families for generations.	Mr Van Niekerk	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	A social-economic specialist study as well as a social impact assessment will be undertaken as part of the EIA process.
20.	We have been living with EIAs for years and have come to the conclusion that EIAs are worth nothing. We understand that the country needs electricity – tell us exactly what Eskom plans – do not lie to us. We feel that Eskom will do exactly what they have done in the past – just ignore us and do what they want to do, regardless of the EIA recommendations.	Mr Johan Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
21.	Stakeholders need to understand everything with regards to the proposed projects, i.e where is the coal coming from, where is the water coming from, where the routes of the transmission lines will be, and about all future power stations after Coal 3 and 4.	Mr Jaco du Bruyn, Mr Johan Burger and others.	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
22.	Why are another new team of consultants on board? Why are we not meeting with the previous consultants (Margen) that we knew? Is it perhaps that Eskom was not satisfied with their recommendations?	Mr Jaco du Bruyn and Mr Tienie Bamberger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom appoints consultants via a tender process for every new EIA process. The previous consultants worked on the EIA process for transmission lines and this is a completely different and new process.
23.	What about the farms neighbouring the new development? Does Eskom plan to buy them out as well?	Mr Marius Barnard	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom cannot buy all the neighbouring farms.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
24.	Eskom is again lying – Eskom says that it is not in the property market – yet Eskom indicated that they want to buy all farms on the three alternative sites. The question remains – what is it then that Eskom is really planning?	Mr Jaco du Bruyn and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
25.	The potential effect of the proposed project will also directly affect associated industries such as taxidermists and professional hunters.	Mr Hardus Steenkamp	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
26.	Other than an employee who loses his/her job, farmers lose everything if they have to sell their land.	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
27.	The urgent notice sent out to all interested and affected parties about the second power station proposed is an excellent example of Eskom's poor planning.	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
28.	Someone asked why we were doing another EIA process, when the previous EIA for the transmission lines was just completed recently.		Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	An EIA still needs to be done, no matter how many EIAs were done in the past – EIAs must be done to look at alternatives and to find the best solution from an environmental angle.
29.	Eskom has not followed the recommendations made in the previous EIA about the transmission lines – why will they follow best recommendations now?	Mr Willie Brits	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
30.	As landowners we feel we have no inputs into the process – why do you consult us then?	Mr Jaco du Bruyn	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
31.	Why can the previous EIA studies not be used? Sasol is also now doing a pre-feasibility study – all the EIAs are taking place in the same area. This is ridiculous. All farms and the whole area have been covered by specialists in EIAs – there is no sense in doing it again.	Mr Archie Leitch and Prof Jan Meiring	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	For each new proposed project an EIA is to be conducted – this is a requirement of law.
32.	There is a huge lack of trust between developers (Eskom, Sasol, etc) and the landowners/agricultural sector of the area.	Mr Brett Lawson, Ninham Shand and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
33.	Several comments were made about the previous EIA conducted by Margen on the route of the transmission lines. It seems that the recommendations that were made by the EIA and independent consultants appointed by the landowners were not considered by DEAT/ Eskom. This resulted in further mistrust between the landowners and Eskom.	Mr Hardus Steenkamp, Mr Hein Boegman and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
34.	All the proposed alternative sites are on areas off coal. Why can some land (it cannot be more than 4 to 5%) not be forfeited on the coal reserves for the construction of power stations?	Prof Jan Meiring	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	The coal reserves are controlled by the Department of Minerals and Energy, and are considered to strategic resources. It is therefore a strategic decision to avoid sterilising coal reserves, as they are an important resource for South Africa.
35.	The farms on the alternative sites can also be seen as strategic, because we bring in foreign currency into South Africa through overseas hunters.	Prof Jan Meiring	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
36.	Why is site A in such a funny shape?	Mr Marius Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held	Site A is divided into two portions to ensure that a portion of the site falls within the "area of intersection", which is the area within 30 km of

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
			on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	any of the coal resources, and furthermore, to avoid other proposed and existing infrastructure, like transmission lines and the proposed delta substation.
	ISSUES	RELEVANT TO THE LA	AND NEGOTIATION PROCE	SS
37.	Farmers said that it is unfair to buy farms at agricultural land value and then rezone it to industrial which has a much higher value. Farmers want to be paid the value for industrial land.	Mr Hein Boegman, Mr Archie Leitch and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	It was noted that in order to change the land value from agricultural to industrial zoning, capital would have to be invested and a process followed. Eskom would have to make the investment in order to realise the industrial value of the land, but the farmers hadn't made the investment, and therefore would not be compensated at the value of industrial land.
38.	An example was quoted that if Pick 'n Pay wanted to buy a house to extend its operations they pay R10 million for a house valued at R2 million. The farmers queried why Eskom could not pay farmers more for their land	Prof Jan Meiring, Mr Johan Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Pick 'n Pay is a private company and can pay what they see fit. Eskom is a parastatal and bound by law (Public Finance Management Act) to pay market related prices.
39.	The farms in the alternative sites can be seen as strategic scarce resources for Eskom, since it is off coal and Eskom is specifically interested in these sites due to their location. Therefore Eskom should pay more for the land than just the agricultural value of land. Eskom should pay the price for strategic scarce resources and not for agricultural land.	Mr Van Niekerk, Prof Jan Meiring and others	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted. See response to points 37 and 38 above.
40.	If a landowner owns two adjacent farms with one within an alternative site, will Eskom buy both farms?	Ms Anna van Niekerk	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom will agree to buy both farms if it is farmed as one unit, and the loss of the one farm will make the entire unit commercially unviable for the farmer.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
41.	What process will Eskom follow to buy the farms on the alternative sites?	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	An option will be paid to landowners within thirty days after signing an option to purchase their land. This option will be valid for two years. Eskom will pay the current market value of the land, plus pay for all improvements and for income losses for a reasonable time. The CPIX inflation figure for agricultural land will be taken into account from the day the option was signed until such time that the property is bought in order to take inflation into consideration. The option money will be calculated as a percentage of the value of the land and could range from 0.5% to 1%. This would be determined at a later stage.
42.	What if farmers do not want to sell their farms to Eskom?	Mr Tienie Bamberger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	The negotiation process is a long process and if all studies show that it is in national interest to buy the farms, then Eskom has to buy those farms. Eskom will exhaust all avenues in the negotiation process. Eskom does however have the right to expropriate land if it is in the national interest.
43.	How will Eskom determine the value of farms in this area? Will the sale of farms in the area in the next couple of months have an influence on the market related value of land?	Mr Hardus Steenkamp	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Yes, however the independent property valuator will most likely look at average prices that were paid for land.
44.	What arrangement will be made with farms that are leased?	Mr Van Niekerk	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom will have to buy out the lease agreement.
45.	Why does Eskom want to take out options on the farms in the alternative sites?	Mr Willie Brits	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at	Eskom would like to ensure that farmers do not sell their land to a third party in the interim period, and they wish to speed up the land negotiation process, so that the process of

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
			Steenbokpan	finalising land can be concluded quickly once a final decision on the power stations have been taken.
46.	Eskom wants to pay the landowners as little as possible. Pay the landowners a decent price. Landowners are not negative about the proposed developments, but if we are not paid a decent price, we will fight the process.	Mr Johan Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
47.	When seen against the total cost for the proposed two power stations, the cost of buying land is a small fraction of the total budget.	Mr Johan Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
48.	Farmers were paid very low prices for their land that was bought for the Medupi power station.	Mr Johan Burger, Mr Hein Boegman, Mr Hardus Steenkamp and others.	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
49.	It is our constitutional right to be paid a decent price for our land.	Mr Johan Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
50.	The Eskom valuator must take into consideration that eco-tourism is a major source of income, with high value and is generally practiced here in this area.	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	All improvements, such as lodges on farms will be taken into consideration.
51.	We question the independence of the Eskom valuator.	Mr Hein Boegman	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Mr Willie Lubbe is a consultant and independent valuator, paid by Eskom per hour for his services.
52.	It was alleged that mining companies (Exxaro) pay more for land than Eskom. It seems that	Mr Hardus Steenkamp	Comments during the landowner and agricultural	Noted.

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
	landowners get the worst deal if Eskom is interested in their land.		sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	
53.	It seems that the longer we delay the EIA process, the better prices we will get for our land.	Mr Hardus Steenkamp	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
54.	I do not want a valuator on my farm. Eskom can offer me a price without needing to know in detail any of the improvements on my farm. Normal practice is for a potential buyer to make an offer and for the potential seller to accept or reject that offer.	Mr Willie Brits	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
55.	How will loss of income be calculated? Should a similar farm be bought after Eskom has bought my land, it will take 5 – 10 years to get a proper, viable operation running again.	Mr Tienie Bamberger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Every transaction differs. Eskom will negotiate with each farmer individually to work out his/her potential loss of income, and provide the appropriate compensation for losses in income and re-establishment time.
56.	 A farmer from Thabazimbi shared his experience in terms of land negotiations and expropriation. The following points were made: Opposing land acquisition and negotiations can be a lengthy and costly process; Expropriation can result in land being purchased for as low as 75% of the market value of the farm; Farmers should stand together and find an independent and experienced land valuator to assist them; and Negotiate with Eskom as a group. 	Mr Dana Smit	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
57.	Does the valuator receive commission on the money he / she saves Eskom when acquiring	Mr Archie Leitch	Comments during the landowner and agricultural	The valuator provides a professional consulting service and is paid per hour for his consulting

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
	farms?		sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	services rendered. Commission is not paid.
58.	Instead of being paid out, the ideal would be to swop a farm for a farm. Land in Klasserie and Koedoeskop are much more expensive than Lephalale.	Mr Willie Brits	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
59.	No-one will buy any farms in the Steenbokpan area due to the uncertainty of Eskom's proposed future plans.	Prof Jan Meiring	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
60.	If a farm is valued at R10 million and the landowners has to pay capital gains tax on the sale, will Eskom compensate the farmer for the loss due to taxes?	Mr Archie Leitch	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Eskom replied that capital gains tax was considered to be a financial loss, and therefore Eskom would compensate for that loss.
61.	The whole game industry in this area will be destroyed if this block of farms is sold to Eskom. The neighbouring farms will suffer most due to the impact.	Mr Johan Burger	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
62.	Farmers were requested to sign consent forms to give Eskom permission to undertake the EIA study on their land and for permission to access their land for investigations by specialists. Eskom requested farmers to provide their contact details for further discussions, even if they do not complete the forms.	Mr Jan de Klerk, Eskom	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Landowners requested electronic copies of the consent form to be sent to them, to enable forwarding the forms to co-land owners or land owners absent from the meeting. Landowners urged each other not to sign the forms at the meeting, but to first discuss it amongst themselves. It was agreed during discussions after the meeting that the landowners will respond to Eskom at a specific date - 30 October 2008

	COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND	COMMENTATOR	SOURCE	RESPONSE
	ISSUES	(S)		
63.	Eskom does not want to use the legislative avenues available, but prefers to negotiate with landowners.	Mr Jan de Klerk, Eskom	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.
64.	I urge the farmers to stand together in the negotiations with Eskom.	Mr Willie Brits	Comments during the landowner and agricultural sector group meeting held on 4 October 2008 at Steenbokpan	Noted.

The meeting was closed at 13:30

Please verify that your contribution at the meeting was correctly captured. Should you wish to notify us of any discrepancies, please feel free to contact us. Anelle Odendaal or Andre Joubert, Zitholele Consulting: Tel (011) 254-4855 or 254-4987, Email:

aodendaal@zitholele.co.za or Andrej@zitholele.co.za.

Environmental Impact Assessment for the two proposed coalfired power stations in the Waterberg area, Limpopo

DEAT Ref No. 12/12/20/1255

Saturday 4 October 2008 Attendance Register Pag				
Mr Tienie Bamberger Olifantskop Groot Fontyn 398 LQ P O Box 286 LEPHALALE 0555		TEL FAX CELL	(014) 763-1184 (086) 531-7303 082 859 4224	
Email:	tienie@warthogsafrica.co.za			
Mr Marius Barnard Rooipan P O Box 119 LEPHALALE 0555		CELL	083 569 8818	
Mr Jan Beukes Renosterpan P O Box 5547 POLOKWANE 075	50	TEL	(014) 766-0186	
Email:	surveyaf@mweb.co.za			
Mnr Hein Boegma Landowner: Farm Mooipan Boerdery 205 Albert Street WATERKLOOF 0	No320 and 325 /	TEL FAX CELL CELL	(011) 797 4335 (012) 346-1802 082 451 8282 082 490 3089	
Email:	hein.boegman@za.pwc.com			
Mr Johan Burger Landowner: Farm Gifboschpan Forestraat 65 ALBERANTE 144		FAX CELL	(011) 869 7414 082 891 4913	
Email:	mtinyani@mweb.co.za			
Mr Marc D'Haen Landowner P O Box 1660 LEPHALALE 0555	5	TEL	(014) 766-0066	
Email:	hunt@lantic.net			
Mr Jaco du Bruyn Naauwpoort LG 36 P O Box 964 LEPHALALE 0555		TEL FAX CELL TEL	(014) 766-0012 (086) 542 9524 082 469 1072 (014) 766 0012	
Email:	jdb@dmv.co.za			

Environmental Impact Assessment for the two proposed coalfired power stations in the Waterberg area, Limpopo

DEAT Ref No. 12/12/20/1255

Saturday 4 October 2008 Attendance Register		Page: 2
Mr Ken du Plessis Fauna African cc P O Box 1203 LEPHALALE 0555	TEL FAX	(014) 766-0111 (014) 766-0110
Web Site: www.faunafrika.com Email: ken@lantic.net		
Mr Julius Erasmus Rooipan P O Box 468 LEPHALALE 0555	TEL	(014) 766 0032
Ms Dudu Hadebe ESKOM - Megawatt Park P O Box 1091 JOHANNESBURG 2000	TEL FAX	(011) 800-3083 (011) 800-2715
Email: dudu.hadebe@eskom.co.za		
Mr Gerham Harmse P O Box 5163 ONVERWACHT 0557	CELL	082 775 2236
Mr Koos Herselman Chairperson Steenbokpan Boerevereniging P O Box 85 STEENBOKPAN 0533	TEL	(014) 766 0184
Email: hermanher@lantic.net		
Mnr Lourens Hoffman Plaas Straffontein 252 IR Posbus 79 DELMAS 2210	FAX CELL	(017) 683 0160 083 454 0977
Mr Henna Kuhn	TEL	(014) 766 0031

Mr Henna Kuhn Landowner: Farm No 330 Rooibokbult Farm P O Box 824 LEPHALALE 0555

Environmental Impact Assessment for the two proposed coalfired power stations in the Waterberg area, Limpopo

DEAT Ref No. 12/12/20/1255

Saturday 4 October 2008 Attendance Register Page: 3				
Mr Hendri le Rou Theunispan Wink P O Box 890 LEPHALALE 055	rel	TEL FAX CELL	(014) 766-0116 (014) 766-0116 083 598 4585	
Mr/Ms Jokie and Landowner: Farm Zyferbult Farm P O Box 952 LEPHALALE 055	n No 324	TEL FAX	(014) 766 0258 (014) 766 0262	
Email:	glombard@afri.co.za			
Prof Jan Meiring Verteenwoordige Flindersteeg 460 LYNNWOOD 008	r van Taaiboschpan 31	TEL FAX CELL	(012) 319-2233 (012) 319-2240 082 565 5916	
Email:	jmeiring@medic.up.ac.za			
Ms Queen Melato ESKOM - Megaw P O Box 1091 JOHANNESBUR	ratt Park	TEL FAX CELL	(011) 800-3950 (011) 800-2715 072 523 5545	
Email:	queen.melato@eskom.co.za			
Ms Sibusiso Rado ESKOM - Megaw P O Box 1091 JOHANNESBUR	ratt Park	TEL FAX	(011) 800-2174 (011) 800-2715	
Mr Andries Schut Steenbokpan	te	TEL CELL	(014) 766-0005 083 309 2333	
Email:	andries17@gmail.com			
Mr Mfundi Songo ESKOM - Megaw P O Box 1091 JOHANNESBUR	ratt Park	TEL FAX	(011) 800-4795 (011) 800-2715	
Email:	mfundi.songo@eskom.co.za			
Mr Thinus Steene Kameelbult P O Box 12 STEENBOKPAN		TEL	(014) 766-0276	







































































































